
 

 
 

 

AGENDA 
 

SWALE RURAL FORUM MEETING 

 
Date: Tuesday, 10 February 2015 
Time:  7.00 pm 
Venue: Lower Halstow Memorial Hall, School Lane, Lower Halstow, Kent ME9 7ES 

 
Membership: 
 
Councillors Barnicott, Bobbin, Monique Bonney, Lloyd Bowen, Bowles, June Garrad, 
Nicholas Hampshire, Lesley Ingham, David Jones, Gerry Lewin, Prescott (Chairman), 
Pat Sandle, David Simmons (Vice-Chairman), Ben Stokes and John Wright 
 
Other Organisations:  
 
Kevin Attwood, Swale National Farmers Union 
Mr Mike Baldock, Kent Association of Local Councils 
Peter Blandon, Council for the Protection of Rural England (CPRE) 
Alastair Brooks, Swale National Farmers Union 
Bill Gardiner, Kent Association of Local Councils 
Mr Tom Gates, Kent County Council 
Keith Harrison, Action with Communities in Rural Kent 
Rollo Parsons, Swale National Farmers Union 
Canon Caroline Pinchbeck, Diocese of Canterbury 
Mrs Pamela Prescott, SEESwale 
Sara Tucker, Kent Association of Local Councils 
Inspector Gavin Wade, Kent Rural Police Force 
 
Quorum = 9  

 
  Pages 

1.  Apologies for Absence 
 

 

2.  Minutes 
 
To approve the Minutes of the Meeting held on 18 November 2014 
(Minute Nos. 340 - 348) as a correct record. 
 

 

3.  Declarations of Interest 
 
Councillors should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial or 
other material benefits for themselves or their spouse, civil partner or 
person with whom they are living with as a spouse or civil partner.  They 
must declare and resolve any interests and relationships. 
 
The Chairman will ask Members if they have any interests to declare in 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

respect of items on this agenda, under the following headings: 
 
(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act 
2011.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be 
declared.  After declaring a DPI, the Member must leave the meeting and 
not take part in the discussion or vote.  This applies even if there is 
provision for public speaking. 
 

(b) Disclosable Non Pecuniary (DNPI) under the Code of Conduct 
adopted by the Council in May 2012.  The nature as well as the existence 
of any such interest must be declared.  After declaring a DNPI interest, 
the Member may stay, speak and vote on the matter. 

 
Advice to Members:  If any Councillor has any doubt about the 
existence or nature of any DPI or DNPI which he/she may have in any 
item on this agenda, he/she should seek advice from the Director of 
Corporate Services as Monitoring Officer, the Head of Legal or from other 
Solicitors in Legal Services as early as possible, and in advance of the 
Meeting. 
 

4.  Public Session 
 
During public session, members of the public living in the Borough of 
Swale may make a statement, submit a petition, or ask the Chairman any 
question on any matter on which the Council has powers or duties, in 
respect of rural matters. 
 
Questions or statements shall be read at the meeting and shall not last 
more than three minutes.  An answer from the Chairman may take the 
form of a direct oral answer or be in writing.  Questions submitted to the 
Democratic Services section in writing (including email) at least three 
days before the meeting will be taken first. 
 

 

PART A REPORTS FOR RECOMMENDATION TO CABINET 
 

 

5.  Leader Programme Update 
 
To receive an update on the Leader Programme from Keith Harrison 
(Chief Executive (Action with Communities in Rural Kent)) and Huw Jarvis 
(Programme Manager (Kent Downs and Marshes Leader)). 
 
Question from members of the public are welcome. 
 

 

6.  Update from Kent Police 
 
To receive an update from Kent Police, to include information on the 
Rural Crime Initiative. 
 
Questions from members of the public are welcome. 
 

 

7.  Loss of hedgerow along the Lower Road (A2500) 
 
Warden Parish Council have requested the following item: 

 



 

 

 
‘That the issue of the loss of more hedgerow along the Lower Road 
(A2500) be considered’. 
 
The East Kent Area Officer has been invited to attend for this item. 
 
Questions from members of the public are welcome. 
 

8.  Facilities for Young People in 2015/16 
 
The Kent Association of Local Councils (KALC) Swale Area Committee 
have requested the following item: 
 
‘The issue of what facilities for young people will be available in 2015/16 
(similar to the community youth project bus).’ 
 
The 0 – 25 Interim District Manager (Swale), Early Help & Preventative 
Services has been invited to attend for this item. 
 
Questions from members of the public are welcome. 
 

 

9.  Lack of Bridleways 
 
Cllr Lewin has requested the following item: 
 
Discussion on a perceived lack of bridleways in Swale west of the A249. 
 
The East Kent Area Officer has been invited to attend for this item. 
 
Questions from members of the public are welcome. 
 

 

10.  Rural Business Opportunities 
 
To consider the Rural Roundup. 
 
Questions from members of the public are welcome. 
 

1 - 4 

 

Issued on Monday, 2 February 2015 
 
The reports included in Part I of this agenda can be made available in 
alternative formats. For further information about this service, or to arrange 
for special facilities to be provided at the meeting, please contact 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES on 01795 417330. To find out more about the work 
of the Swale Rural Forum, please visit www.swale.gov.uk 
 
 
 
Corporate Services Director, Swale Borough Council, 
Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

SWALE BOROUGH COUNCIL LAUNCHES A BUSINESS-DEDICATED SITE – AND 

WE MEAN BUSINESS! 

As part of our ‘Open for Business’ strategy, we have launched a new website - ‘Swale 

Means Business’.   The website makes the case for the Borough as an investment 

location, and also promotes the support that the Council can offer business.  The site 

also provides a platform for us to communicate with business communities, be they start-

ups, existing businesses, or investors.  

The site will remain a ‘work-in-progress’ over the coming months as we continue to 

collect and format content, but we would welcome your feedback on the site in the 

meantime.  It may be that you have a suggestion for information that is not presently 

included, or perhaps there is a specific audience who you think we should target that 

would benefit. 

Beyond ensuring that the ‘core’ content is fully uploaded over the next few months, we 

will be looking to continually update the site with relevant news, articles and images, so 

any ideas will be most welcome.  

Why not take a look today. Visit www.swalemeansbusiness.co.uk as well as our 

sister site www.visit-swale.co.uk 

 

HELP SHAPE THE FUTURE OF YOUR RURAL AREA 

Kent Downs and Marshes Leader and the East Kent Leader are looking for new 

members to join their Local Action Groups (LAGs). The LEADER approach is a way of 

spending money on local rural issues, identified by people living in the area. This bottom 

–up approach to local issues leads to locally tailored solutions based on the economic, 

social and environmental based needs of the Leader area. 

The money is locally controlled with decisions about which projects are funded being 

made by the LAG. Each LAG is made up of representatives from organisations across 

that Leader area which includes the relevant parts of rural Swale.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 10



Kent Downs & Marshes Leader has been in existence since 2007 and delivered a 

£1.65m funding programme which ended in 2013. It is about to start a new funding 

Programme (subject to a successful bid to Defra) which will run up to 2020 and will be 

joined by the NEW East Kent Leader. As a consequence the LAG for both areas are 

looking to attract new members from business, social and environmental backgrounds 

(individuals or groups) to help deliver and shape the new Programme which will be worth 

£3.28m collectively and will start in early 2015.  

This is a voluntary role with no liabilities on membership and will include 

attendance at up to two meetings a year. 

Cllr Andrew Bowles says: 

‘Swale is keen to ensure that its rural communities have every opportunity to deliver 

projects that respond to very specific priorities for its local communities and we will 

continue to work through the programmes to ensure we build on the success of previous 

programmes’. 

Funding for Leader comes from The Rural Development Programme for England 2014 - 

2020 and is administered through Defra. Kent County Council is the accountable body for 

the Leader group. If you feel you could help shape the new Programme for your area by 

becoming a member of the Kent Downs and Marshes Leader or want to learn more about 

getting involved, then please contact Huw Jarvis, Programme Manager, on 01622 

696940 or email huw.jarvis@kent.gov.uk 

 

TIME FOR ALTERNATIVE POWER TO HELP YOUR RURAL BUSINESS? 

The case for commercial rooftop solar photovoltaics (PV) has so far rested primarily on 

the green credentials of the technology. The lack of a definitive case for short-term return 

on investment on the capital costs of installing rooftop PV has been a barrier to 

widespread uptake. 

However, a report published recently suggests that there is now a clear and compelling 

economic case for its adoption - the cost of solar panels has plummeted so that the 

potential savings versus rising grid-based electricity bills have increased. The study 

uncovers that "British businesses could save over £5bn per year in electricity bills, at 

current price and consumption levels, by installing fully-funded rooftop solar PV systems 

on south-facing commercial roofs." 

With this in mind, it could be worth reading this study on the potential cost savings 

commercial rooftop solar PV offers and see if it could help you. 

To access the report, please visit www.swalemeansbusiness.co.uk/news 

 

 

Page 2

mailto:huw.jarvis@kent.gov.uk


TASTE OF KENT AWARDS 

The most venerated ‘Taste of Kent’ awards are upon us again. The awards, run by 

Produced in Kent have demonstrated increased popularity year on year and nominations 

for all categories have reached record numbers. 

Stephanie Durling, business development manager at Produced in Kent, who run the 

awards, said: “This year has again seen people voting in their thousands with the number 

of votes we received up by around 50%. 

From all across the county, the people of Kent have chosen the tastes, flavours, 

products, produce and venues that they have enjoyed the most over the last 12 months”. 

The Swale businesses nominated for the Taste of Kent awards (for your rural bulletin) 

are: 

Best Kentish Beer, sponsored by Rix and Kay Solicitors 

Nominated: Whitstable Bay - Shepherd Neame, Faversham Brewery 

Kent Local Food Retailer of the Year, sponsored by Bennett Opie Ltd 

Nominated: Macknade Fine Foods, Faversham 

Best Kentish Cider or Perry, sponsored by Wilkins Kennedy FKC 

Nominated: Cerry Old Dudda - Pine Trees Farms, Doddington 

Best Kent Juice Provider, sponsored by Kent County Council 

Nominated: Pine Trees Farm, Doddington 

There is also more information at the KM webpage at:  

http://www.kentonline.co.uk/kent-business/county-news/public-vote-on-fine-food-30045/ 

 

BUSINESS SURVEY – RURAL COMMUNITIES OUTCOMES 

The results of our Business Survey are in and we are working through the responses as 

this goes to press. The survey was sent to 3270 Swale businesses by post.  There was 

also the opportunity to for any business based in Swale to respond online through Survey 

Monkey (the survey was promoted through our e-bulletin, local business networks and 

SERP).  Of those, 294 businesses in Swale responded to the survey. 

A total of 731 Rural Businesses were sent a business survey by post and 30 responded 

(4% of the rural companies approached).  All outcomes provide us a baseline for future 

surveys. 

Page 3



The purpose of the survey was to determine the demographics and health of local 

business, to determine how they have fared during the recession and of potential for 

growth in the coming months. 

The general consensus amongst these rural businesses is that they are surviving, with 

business improving/staying the same. We want to help to increase the number of 

businesses ‘improving’ in the borough and we continue to look for ways to support rural 

business.  

We can offer a robust Business Support Programme to help new and existing businesses 

and our ‘Swale Means Business’ website is a great resource tool for locating general 

business advice, funding and info on networking in your area. Can’t find what you’re 

looking for? No problem, get in touch by calling (01795)417194. 

 

Page 4


	Agenda
	10 Rural Business Opportunities

